CLASSIFICATION: Unrestricted

NHS

Salisbury

NHS Foundation Trust
Draft

Minutes of the Public Trust Board meeting
held at 11:00am on Thursday 6 July 2023, MS Teams

Board Members:

lan Green (IG)

Rakhee Aggarwal (RA)
Debbie Beaven (DBe)
Eiri Jones (EJ)

David Buckle (DBu)
Tania Baker (TB)

Michael von Bertele (MVB)

Richard Holmes (RH)
Stacey Hunter (SH)
Judy Dyos (JD)

Mark Ellis (ME)

Peter Collins (PC)
Melanie Whitfield (MW)
Lisa Thomas (LT)

In Attendance:
Georgina Morris (GM)
Fiona McNeight (FMc)
Sasha Grandfield (SG)
Jayne Sheppard (JS)
Jane Podkolinski (JP)
Alex Talbott (AT)

Cath Hill (CH)
Frances Owen (FO)
Simon Harrod (SH)
Abi Kingston (AK)
Vicky Marston (VM)

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust

Boardroom

Chair

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Chief Executive Officer
Chief Nursing Officer
Chief Finance Officer
Chief Medical Officer
Chief People Officer
Chief Operating Officer

Consultant in Sexual Health (for agenda item 1.2)
Director of Integrated Governance

Board Support Officer (minutes)

Lead Governor (observer)

Governor (observer)

Associate Director for Improvement (for agenda item 3.2)
Aqua (observer)

Governor (observer)

Public (observer)

Clinical Director, Women and Newborn (for agenda item 5.6)
Interim Director of Midwifery (for agenda item 5.6)

TB1
06/07/1
TB1
06/07/1.1

Version:1.0

ACTION

OPENING BUSINESS
Presentation of SOX (Sharing Outstanding Excellence) Certificates

IG noted the following members of staff had been awarded a SOX
Certificate and details of the nominations were given:

May SOX of the month — Laura Lawes, HCA Durrington Ward and
Endoscopy Nursing Team

June SOX of the month — Hannah England, Recruitment and the Estates
team.

May Patient Centred SOX — Tina Dickenson, Pitton Ward Clerk and Harrie
Hudson, Switchboard

June Patient Centred SOX — Leanne Mitchell HCA and Holly Jarvis, HCA
— Downton Ward

Page 1 of 20 Retention Date: 31/12/2039



Classification: Unrestricted
Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

IG congratulated all the staff that had been recognised in May and June
on behalf of the Board and also thanked all the staff that had been
nominated for their hard work and innovation.

RH noted how wonderful it was to have the Board meeting prefaced by

the good work recognised in the SOX winners but added it would be nice

to try to recognise some of the winners regionally and nationally too

perhaps in the Kings birthday honours list. SH suggested discussing the

different ways to acknowledge staff at a future Board Development Day.

ACTION KN/SG KN/
SG

SH noted how the SOX nominations brought the good work of non-

clinical departments to the attention of the Board.

IG noted nominations for the Staff Awards in September were now open
and encouraged those present to recognise the good work of staff by
nominating them.

TB1 Staff Story

06/07/1.2
MW introduced Georgina Morris (GM), consultant in Sexual Health and
also the Foundation Programme Director. GM presented a video
featuring a foundation doctor with neurodiversity who had overcome
some significant challenges to finish his F2 training at the Trust.

GM explained there was no data on the numbers of staff in the NHS with
neurodiversity but it was estimated between 10% and 30%. GM noted the
doctor featured in the video had developed significantly since joining the
trust and was sure to go on to have a successful career.

Discussion:

e JD noted the doctor in the video had a positive experience but
that was not necessarily the case for all staff, some staff found it
really challenging to access the support they needed.

o DBu noted his experience of general practice was very isolating
but wondered if there was an opportunity to explore the careers
advice available to junior doctors as the range of careers in
medicine was diverse. GM agreed and added the doctor in the
video had used the education support network in the Trust to
have career discussions and had tried different placements.

e SH noted trainee staff had more flexibility in their role but the
same opportunities should be available to substantive staff. SH
added the trust should be able to demonstrate to our local
population that it is a place that everyone can work in with over
330 different careers to offer.

¢ RA shared with the Board her diagnoses of dyspraxia and noted
the challenges she faced. RA added that it was the law for
employers to provide reasonable adjustments to enable staff to be
successful regardless of their abilities.

e MvB noted this was an example of diversity in action, traditionally
all staff were managed in the same way but now people were
more aware and starting to understand the value of getting to
know their staff and to really understand their problems.

Page 2 of 20



Classification: Unrestricted
Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

e DBe questioned how many staff that left the NHS workforce had
neurodiversity and the cost of recruitment compared to the cost of
the support and technology necessary to retain these staff.

¢ |G noted the Board had spent some time at a recent development
day discussing their EDI responsibilities but there needed to be a
further discussion on the Trust's approach to diversity.

IG thanked GM and the Education Team for their leadership and support.
IG asked GM to pass on the Boards thanks to the doctor for sharing his
story.

GM left meeting.

TB1 Welcome and Apologies
06/07/1.3
There were no apologies.
TB1 Declarations of Conflicts of Interest
06/07/1.4

There were no declarations of conflict of interest pertaining to the
agenda. However, the following items were noted:

¢ SH noted her standing declaration in relation to being an Integrated
Care Board (ICB) Member, noting that there was no conflict of
interest with any of the agenda items at the meeting.

TB1 Minutes of the Part 1 (Public) Trust Board meeting held on 4 May
06/07/1.5 2023

IG presented the public minutes from 4t May 2023 and the minutes were
approved as an accurate record of the meeting.

TB1 Matters Arising and Action Log
06/07/1.6
FMc presented the action log and noted the following key updates:

e TB1 9/3/5.3 Maternity Quality and Safety Report Q3 22/23 - EJ
noted this item could be closed, EJ and JD would continue to
work on it and report back to Trust Board if necessary.

e TB16/4/3.6 IPR and TB1 4/5/2.5 IPR - LT confirmed an
assurance report would be going to both F&P and CGC in July.

e TB1 4/5/2.1 Clinical Governance Committee (CGC) 25t April
2023/Maternity — The Board noted the Badger Net paper was
going to July F&P

e TB1 4/5/6.3 Integrated Accountability and Governance
Framework — FMc confirmed the wording had been updated —
item closed.

There were no matters arising.

TB1 Shadow Board Feedback
06/07/1.7

Page 3 of 20



Classification: Unrestricted
Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

RA presented the feedback from the previous days Shadow Board and
noted the board had discussed:

e 3 papers were presented, Infection Control, Health and Safety
and Patient Experience.

e Accessibility to training and development came out as a theme
across all the papers presented.

o Violence and aggression and how to prevent it in.

o How to measure learning from experiences and patient feedback
to show lessons have been learned and practices are changing.

e Discussion regarding improving the environment that end-of-life
conversations take place in.

¢ Are the friends and family forms fit for purpose and can the
content be influenced.

o Complaints seem to be revisited as people aren’t satisfied with
the conclusion, the complaints process needed to clarify the
question asked before the investigation to get the right outcome
for the complainant.

¢ Distributing the good practice that comes from compliments.

o Asking patients to contribute to the Health and Safety policy.

IG noted he and SH had discussed asking members of the shadow board
to attend Trust Board to feedback in future. SH noted there were some
recommendations made by the last shadow board cohort which had been
agreed in full, SH added in future members of the shadow board will be
asked to give their feedback on the agenda item they presented when the
same item is presented to the Trust Board to try to make the experience
as real as possible. IG noted this would bring a different perspective to
the Trust Board.

RA noted the presentations had been slick, the discussion was rich and
questions were answered as investigatory work had been done before
hand by Shadow Board members. IG thanked RA and the Shadow Board
for their feedback and asked RA to provide further shadow board
feedback during the discussion of agenda items.

TB1 Chair’s Business

06/07/1.8
IG noted he had recently spent time with the surgery and medicine
divisions and attended their team meetings. |G added he was reassured
that the issues being discussed at divisional level were the same issues
being discussed at the committees and Board.

IG congratulated LT on her appointment as substantive Chief Operating
Officer.

TB1 Chief Executive’s Report
06/07/1.9
SH presented her CEO report and highlighted the following key points:

e Progress with recovery had been sustained over the last few
months, SH thanked the teams involved.

Page 4 of 20



Classification: Unrestricted
Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

e The organisation had dealt with the last round of industrial action
well, SH noted her apologies to any patients who had their
appointments rearranged.

¢ Planning had now started for the forthcoming industrial action by
junior doctors next week.

¢ Confirmation has just been received from the BMA that
consultants have also supported strike action on 20" and 21st
July. SH noted the fine line between respecting people’s legal
right to strike and the responsibility of the executive team on
behalf of the board to ensure delivery of safe, acute emergency
services.

¢ SHthanked PC and his deputy Duncan Murray for their help with
coordinating cover on rotas and for dealing with challenging
situations. SH noted that if there were any concerns regarding the
service the hospital was able to provide communication would
take place off-line to escalate to the Board.

e The Trust was in a period of financial and performance recovery
but at month 2 the Trust was on plan.

e Events had taken place to celebrate the NHS 75" anniversary.

o Work experience placements had been welcomed back to the
hospital after the pause during COVID.

Discussion:

IG reflected on the impact of the industrial action and the significant
amount of activity and planning involved to maintain patient safety. IG
added, whilst respecting people’s right to strike, the strikes were not
sustainable in the long term and the disputes needed to be resolved in
the interests of both the patients and staff.

TB noted the RCN action was now over, but the underlying elements had
not been resolved so the issues still remained. TB asked if there were
any lasting impacts from tensions between groups of staff striking and not
striking. SH noted it was too early to determine but reflected on the
number of nurses who voted as a way of showing their dissatisfaction.

SH added there had been relatively little backlash due to the tone of
communications and engagements had been handled well.

JD noted there was a sense of dissatisfaction from nurses but this was
aimed mainly at the union.

EJ reflected that the consultants had stepped up during the previous
junior doctors strikes to cover rotas but the junior doctors were unable to
provide the same cover to consultant posts during the consultant strikes,
EJ asked for assurance that there would still be focus on patient safety
during the consultant strikes.

PC noted the BMA had guaranteed to provide the same service as
emergency Christmas day cover. PC added some consultants would
choose not to strike and some of the more senior junior doctors could
cover consultants work such as outpatients. PC noted there may be an
impact on the willingness of staff to cover if the strikes continue for a
significant amount of time.

DBu reflected on the new perspective of the next strikes involving
consultants and that there may be subtle issues regarding supervision,

Page 5 of 20



Classification: Unrestricted
Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

DBu requested that the board be kept informed if the arrangements don’t
go as planned.

SH noted gold meetings would take place every day in the lead up and
during the strikes to make sure the rotas have been populated to keep
the Trust’s emergency and urgent care services safe, SH confirmed the
Board would be kept informed of any concerns. SH added the same level
of attention and assurance would be used during the consultants strikes.
SH noted cover during the consultants strikes needed to be paid for and
PC had been liaising with medical director colleagues in BSW regarding
the rate the BMA think should be paid, this offer had to be increased to
secure the best opportunities across BSW.

TB1 ASSURANCE AND REPORTS OF COMMITTEES
06/07/2

TB1 Clinical Governance Committee (CGC)
06/07/2.1

EJ presented the report, providing a summary of escalation points from
the meeting held on 27™ June 2023. EJ noted the report was very
detailed and asked for it to be taken as read and highlighted the key
points as follows:

e The year 5 Maternity Incentive Scheme had been received.

e There was good assurance provided regarding the national
patient safety work and the preparation of PSIRF.

o There was good alignment and assurance provided by the Board
Assurance Framework, the Integrated Performance Report and
the quarterly and annual reports.

Discussion:

IG noted the detailed escalation reports from the committees provided
the Board with a huge amount of assurance and highlighted the areas
that the committees had been focusing on.

SH asked what assurance the committee had received regarding the
continued HMSR revalidation. PC offered to circulate a paper to the
Board which would give more detail regarding the modelling triangulation
work, mortality data and changes in coding practice.

EJ confirmed the mortality lead for the trust would review any flags in
detail and there would be an enhanced focus on the learning outcomes in
future reports. EJ noted the South West region was reporting lower death
rates than other parts of the country and post pandemic people were
presenting later. EJ noted the committee was assured that due diligence
had been done on HMSR.

DBu noted the Trust was an outlier due to how the measurements were

made, a clinical issue or combination of both, there was no evidence but

the committee would continue to try to understand why the figure was

high. TB asked for PC’s update to be circulated to the Board. ACTION: PC
PC

Page 6 of 20



Classification: Unrestricted
Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

TB1 Finance and Performance Committee
06/07/2.2

DBe presented the report, providing a summary of escalation points from
the meeting held on 27" June 2023. DBe asked for the report to be
taken as read and highlighted the key points as follows:

e The EPR business case had been discussed earlier in the Private
Trust Board meeting.

e There had been a deep dive into breast reconstruction with a very
open and honest report from the surgical team which detailed the
change in reporting that will impact the numbers of patients
waiting for breast reconstruction. The Committee had received
assurance that the Trust’s reputational risk would be mitigated
through a strong communications plan and patients would be
supported with counselling.

¢ An inspiring testimony on Improving Together had been received
with data from SDEC already showing improvements and cost
savings.

e Pressures and potential risks to the Quarter 1 forecast were
noted.

e The industrial action was attributed as the main cause of the
variance against the plan in the Month 2 Finance Report.

o The Committee received assurance on the progress already
made on cost savings and were encouraged while noting there
were still challenges.

Discussion:

ME noted the BSW was significantly off plan in month 2 and the ICB may
make the decision to voluntarily go into financial recovery protocols. ME
added for this reason NHSE oversight would be keeping an eye on how
the Trust manages its finances.SH suggested continuing this
conversation in a tactical discussion in the private session. SH added this
had been escalated to the system financial recovery group and LT and
her team were working hard to mitigate. |G agreed to continue the
discussion in the Private session.

TB1 Trust Management Committee
06/07/2.3

SH presented the report which provided a summary of escalation points
from the meeting held on 28" June 2023. SH asked for the report to be
taken as read and noted this month the committee had received a
number of business cases from divisions and corporate services.

TB1 People and Culture Committee
06/07/2.4

RA gave a verbal update from the meeting held on 27" June 2023. RA
highlighted the following key points:

e The committee had discussed recruitment and retention and how
to attract health care assistants.

e There had been a bigger willingness to speak up from staff with
protected characteristics.

e The WRES and WDES and Medical Workforce data had been
uploaded to the national system.

Page 7 of 20



Classification: Unrestricted
Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

SH reminded Board colleagues to complete their characteristics on ESR
in the next few days.

TB106/07/ Audit Committee — 22 June 2023
25

RH presented the report, providing a summary of escalation points from
the meeting held on 22" June 2023. RH asked for the report to be taken
as read and highlighted the following key points:

e There had been an additional audit committee in June to approve
the accounts. The financial statement had been submitted to
NHSE by the 30" June and had been laid before parliament
before the deadline of 7t July. All statutory obligations relating to
the annual report and financial statements had been satisfactorily
completed this year.

e There had been a changeover of auditors recently and the
outgoing auditors had left positive feedback regarding the Trust’s
capability and achievements which was a reflection on all the hard
work that had taken place.

e The Committee had discussed an internal audit report which had
picked up some challenges in the Organisational Development
and People department, the committee acknowledged there had
been lots of hard work already with more work still to do.

IG confirmed the Board had delegated its authority to the Audit
Committee to approve the accounts and the Board noted the accounts
had been filed appropriately and laid before parliament. DBe asked if
internal audit reports get presented at the board committees. RH
confirmed that the internal audit reports go to board committees.

MW thanked RH for acknowledging the improvement in OD&P and noted
the internal audit report related not only to her department but also to
work that all line managers in the Trust needed to do.

TB1 Integrated Performance Report (IPR) (M2)

06/07/2.6
LT presented the Integrated Performance Report which provided a
summary of May 2023 performance metrics. LT noted that May had been
an interesting month with three bank holidays, strike action taking place
and the closure of Whiteparish Ward for maintenance, LT highlighted the
following points:

Use of agencies and sickness had both gone down significantly.

e Cancer targets had been met and it had been a very busy elective
month.

¢ High bed occupancy levels had affected overall performance.
Concerns regarding cancer dermatology and Stroke and
additional support needed in Urology.

Discussion:

IG asked if the Board could be confident that the building blocks were in
place to achieve the breakthrough objectives.

LT explained urgent care was in good place, there were some
opportunities to explore in planned care, particularly outpatients but there

Page 8 of 20



Classification: Unrestricted
Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

were problems due to workforce capacity and work was ongoing to
understand what mitigations were necessary. LT added she was happy
with processes and governance which had been strengthened.

IG noted the discharge lounge had opened since the report had been
produced and asked if this had an impact on bed capacity.

LT confirmed the discharge hub had gone live on 3™ July and already
had an big impact, the aim of the hub was to try to get elderly patients
sent home as soon as possible with social and community care in place,
triage of patients already admitted to support their needs beyond their
time in hospital and to identify and support patients with complex needs.

TB reflected on patient falls and noted a comment made by the therapy
team regarding conservative management of patients who are kept in
hospital beyond when they should be discharged. PC noted the
continuous improvement methodology trained staff but it was a balance,
the quality impact assessment process would focus people’s minds on
unintended consequences. TB added if patients weren’t mobilised
quickly, it could have an impact on length of stay. JD noted the falls rate
had been fairly static for the last few months but falls with harm had been
significantly reduced, there was a risk that mobilisation had been reduced
but JD confirmed wards were getting back into initiatives like PJ paralysis
which had been lost during the COVID period. JD added there was a
balance between patients deconditioning in bed and falling and breaking
their neck of femur.

EJ noted the Clinical Governance Committee had discussed the risks of
moving elderly frail patients more than once as they can become
disoriented and fall. EJ noted Stuart Henderson had attended the
meeting to give a presentation on SDEC and as part of the improving
together programme had been looking at which patients were being
moved multiple times, EJ noted SHe had been asked to come back to
Clinical Governance Committee to see if this had an impact on reducing
falls. ME noted it would be good to discuss this further to see where the
opportunities are when more data was available.

TB1 STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT

06/07/3

TB1 Review of Trust Strategy Progress Report
06/07/3.1

LT presented the report and noted it was the first report since Improving
Together had been adopted and used vision metrics as a way of
measuring strategy deployment. LT added she would take the report as
read but that there was a strategy session at the Trust Board
Development Day in August to discuss this further. LT suggested the
Board feedback outside of meeting their thoughts on what would be
useful in future quarterly reports.

Discussion:

IG added the report gave a helpful snapshot of where we are and how
the improving together methodology fits in but there would be greater
insight following the Development Day in August in terms of what the
board would like to see on a quarterly basis. EJ referred to item 3.1 in the
report and noted it was a great step forward to have one strategy for the

Page 9 of 20



Classification: Unrestricted

Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

TB1
06/07/3.2

TB1
06/07/4
TB1
06/07/4.1

TB1
06/07/5
TB1
06/07/5.1

organisation. FMc noted the strategy report had been aligned with the
Board Assurance Framework which was why the BAF was now slightly
out of sync.

SH noted the new duty to collaborate required being much more explicit
about the triple aims. SH added the board could give more thought at the
August development day as to how we link back to the triple aims
explicitly within the priorities and strategy.

Improving Together Quarterly Update Report

PC introduced Alex Talbot (AT) the Associate Director of improvement.
AT presented the report and noted the following points:

¢ Since the last report NHS England had introduced the NHS
Impact Report, the Trust already had all the components in place
and there was an opportunity for the board to use these to lead
with humility.

e The training trajectory was slightly behind due to attendance and
capacity in the Coach House.

o The Improving Together language was really starting to grip
across the Trust with staff regularly using A3 thinking for problem
solving and undertaking ‘go and sees’.

Discussion:

IG confirmed he had witnessed the improving together language being
used at meetings he had attended. DBe noted a presentation on SDEC
had been given at Finance and Performance Committee which had been
really inspiring, DBe reflected how more teams could be encouraged to
set the right priorities and focus to then be able to find the head space to
move forward, DBe suggested making videos of case studies of those
who have done it and how they did it to inspire others.

SH noted management posts in the divisions had been increased to
develop a triumvirate approach at speciality level on a consistent basis to
provide extra opportunity to work with frontline teams using coaching and
the operational management system. PC reminded the Board that at the
next board development day in August there would be an item focusing
on leadership behaviours, in preparation for this PC asked the Board to
complete the online survey. |G noted the Board’s leadership in this
process was crucial to its success.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

SIRO Annual Data Security & Protection Assurance Report
(includes Toolkit Self-Assessment and Data Protection Annual
Report and GDPR) - deferred to September.

The Board noted the SIRO report had been deferred to September.
QUALITY AND RISK

Risk Management Strategy 3 yearly report — deferred to September

Page 10 of 20



Classification: Unrestricted
Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

The Board noted the Risk Management report had been deferred to
September.

TB1 Patient Experience Report — Q4/Annual Report
06/07/5.2
JD presented the report and noted the following key points:

e The Trust continued to struggle to get complaints resolved in a
timely manner and there had been an increase in complaints
being reopened.

e The friends and family test continues to be very positive but the
response rate could be better so an online solution was being
worked on.

The Trust had performed well in the National Maternity Survey.

o The Bereavement survey showed a reduction in satisfaction with
the management of care of individuals at the point of
bereavement. The PALs team were working with divisions to try to
improve the patient experience.

e Work on triangulating feedback from patient groups and real time
patient feedback to understand the patient experience.

Discussion:

IG asked if there had been any shift in complaints about nutrition and
hydration. JD noted the report implied all complaints were about nutrition
and hydration, JD added the next report would be clear how many
complaints were about nutrition and hydration.

MW referred to insensitive communications and asked for more
information. JD explained there had been an issue with consultant’s
communication in the past and PALS were working on an education
piece to try to show consultants the impact of how they say things but
there was a challenge due to the complex information they were trying to
explain. PC noted there was more to do to support staff to communicate
better. PC added the consistent theme with communication complaints
was it is often a message that people didn’t want to receive. SH noted
there was more work to do to get a grip on how long it takes to respond
to complaints, as it did not give a good impression of how much this
feedback is valued.

EJ noted this report had previously been well received at Clinical
Governance Committee and added the softer skills like compassion and
kindness were harder to deliver when one was feeling challenged.

DBu asked when complaints could be expected to achieve the Improving
Together target. SH noted the shortfall was due to capacity issues in the
divisions.

The Board noted the report and appendices.

TB1 Learning from Deaths Report — Q4/Annual Report

06/07/5.3
IG asked the Board if they had any further questions on this paper as the
content had already been covered in previous reports.

Page 11 of 20



Classification: Unrestricted
Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

Discussion:

EJ noted this report had previously been received at Clinical Governance
Committee where learning from deaths for people with learning
disabilities had been discussed. EJ added now there was a lead nurse for
learning disabilities in post it would be good to focus on this and
strengthen the learning. PC confirmed he had discussed this with the
Head of Clinical Effectiveness and it had been agreed to include the
additional input from the lead nurse for learning difficulties.

SH noted it may be hard for members of the public to understand why the
hospital currently had high Hospital Standard Mortality Ratios (HSMR)
and asked if there was a way to explain without being too technical.

PC agreed the paper was complicated and referred to the summary that
had been circulated as an action from agenda item 2.1 which was an
attempt to respond to these concerns.

IG noted the information needed to be clear and transparent but added
this had been reviewed at a regional level which provided a broad level of
assurance. RH suggested using the in-house communications team to
translate the information into language that could be understood by
laypersons. The board noted the report acknowledging that there were
ongoing issues.

TB1 Annual DIPC Report
06/07/5.4
This item was taken after agenda item 5.6.

JD presented the annual report and highlighted the following points:

e The Trust had declared outbreaks for covid 19 which continued to
be easily transmittable across the hospital but with less impact.

¢ An outbreak of norovirus had been declared which had been
closed down quickly.

o The Trust benchmarks well against the rest of the South-West for
the key infections that are monitored.

e There had been 4 surgical site infections related to orthopaedic
surgeries, a deep dive had been arranged with the surgical team
to understand what was driving this and what could be done
differently.

Discussion:

RA noted improving hand hygiene training had been discussed at
shadow board, RA added during the pandemic hand hygiene had been
managed to a high level but had seemed to have slipped back.

JD referred to a pilot scheme recently undertaken on Pitton Ward which
was being rolled out across the Trust, the scheme focused on ward
managers assessing staff on key measures of compliance but audits
show results are largely unchanged, JD confirmed the issue would
continue to be challenged and persevere with communications about
appropriate uniform and decontamination.

SH noted the report was very positive and the Trust had benchmarked
well despite some challenges, SH acknowledged the good work of
colleagues to keep patients as free from infection as our counterparts.

Page 12 of 20



Classification: Unrestricted
Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

The Board noted the report.

TB1 Risk Management Annual Report
06/07/5.5
This item was taken after agenda item 5.4.

JD presented the report and highlighted the following points:

¢ Managing serious incidents and critical incidents in the 60-day
time frame had been an ongoing issue, the investigations were
very time consuming and the Trust had recently moved to a new
system PSIRF which focused on shared learning and would
reduce the amount of work.

e There had been 38 falls with harm last year which was a
reduction from 54 the previous year.

o Deep dives into divisional risk registers on a quarterly basis,
divisional teams to do the same in each speciality and area.

e Training in the correct way to detect and report incidents so that
they can be properly managed and are useful.

Discussion:

IG referred to the number of medication incidents and asked if the Board
should be concerned about the increase. JD noted when EPMA was fully
integrated there would be a much better picture of the Trust’s medication
issues.

PC confirmed he had discussed this with the Chief Pharmacist. EPMA is
now reporting better data and a change to processes has meant the
figures are changing. PC has started to triangulate this information.

EJ noted the Pharmacy team had been very open and transparent about
their challenges, the Pharmacy team had a 60% vacancy rate but had
now recruited 5 new members of staff to start in August. The Clinical
Governance Committee had asked for more assurance in their next
report and to triangulate with the incident report.

DBe referred to the number of catastrophic rated risks in the report and
asked what the definition of catastrophic was. FMc noted any incident
rated moderate or above would go to the weekly safety summit where it
would be decided if they were truly catastrophic. PC explained
sometimes there was a misunderstanding on how to score risks and
suggested there needed to be more attention to the consistency of
approach by non-clinical and clinical divisions. JD noted there were very
few Serious Incidents that were related to medication. JD confirmed
there had been issues where a patient had been transferred to a ward
using EPMA from a ward that didn’t as the roll out had been ward by
ward.

SH referred to the non-clinical risks and explained there was a separate
report covering Estates. LT asked if future reports could contain a
conclusion and if there were any themes which could indicate if there
were barriers. |G noted he had recently had to read a clinical review to
report back to a family, IG noted the report was very thorough and must
have taken a huge amount of work to compile. JD noted the reports were

Page 13 of 20



Classification: Unrestricted
Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

written by clinical staff. JD added the themes from the report were failure
to escalate, failure to diagnose and failure to get treatment.

LT explained her concern was regarding process weaknesses and if the
divisions required extra support. JD noted it had been agreed to give
clarity on incidents and risks at a future cascade brief.

FMc noted there had been a cultural shift from PSIRF, the Board would
no longer need to discuss individual high harm events as the focus would
be on the learning from high volume low harm events, FMc added the
Board had developed its thinking and focus and the improvements and
learning on patient safety.

The Board noted the report.

TB1 Q4 Maternity Quality and Safety Report
06/07/5.6
This item was taken after agenda item 5.3.

JD welcomed Abi Kingston (AK), Clinical Director, Women and Newborn
Division and Vicky Marston (VM), Interim Director of Midwifery.

VM asked the Board to note the Q4 report and highlighted the following
points:
e The Perinatal Mortality Review Tool findings.
e The Trust remained compliant with the labour ward coordinator
being supernumerary.
e Women received 100% 1:1 care in Q4.

Discussion:

EJ noted the Care Quality Commission had visited some maternity units
in the South West recently and published their reports, EJ added it may
be useful to reflect on these reports for learning. EJ noted the strong
leadership team now in place in the division and added the Clinical
Governance Committee were not complacent. EJ expressed a concern
that as a small unit Salisbury did not have a second Obstetric Theatre
staffed 24/7 and if it was worth keeping a 2" theatre open for 1 or 2
cases a year.

IG asked AK to give a general overview as the clinical director.

AK noted there had been a lack of staffing capacity in governance but
there was now a quality and safety matron in place. A new governance
framework had just been completed and would soon be going to Clinical
Governance Committee. AK added the 2™ theatre issue had been added
to the risk register.

IG referred to a recent visit to maternity with EJ and commented on the
positive feedback received from patients. SH referred to the patient
experience indicators and gave her congratulations on having so many in
the top 20%. SH referred to a Freedom to Speak Up report and
commented that more requests were received from Maternity.

JD noted 2" theatres were a challenge for smaller hospitals but the
aseptic? room was used as mitigation. JD added the Freedom to speak
Up concerns had come from a particular group of staff; two meetings had
taken place and some positive progress made.

Page 14 of 20



Classification: Unrestricted
Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

FMc noted Maternity’s governance framework had been formally
appended to the Integrated Governance Framework. JD noted there
were two things that would allow the Trust to move out of the Maternity
Improvement Programme — the integrated governance framework and
the imbedded maternity improvement meetings.

EJ asked if the right number of obstetric staff were currently in post.

AK noted there were a couple of gaps that had recently been appointed
to but as a small unit the Trust had struggled to appoint an Obstetrician.
RH noted Maternity were now regular visitors to Trust Board and felt
welcomed and less isolated because of that, RH noted the Board had not
heard from the other divisions. SH noted there was a statutory
requirement for Maternity to attend Trust Board but agreed the Non-
Executive Directors needed to hear from the people doing the work. SH
added that the Board Committees hear from a variety of teams but there
was balance between Trust Board business and the connection with
staff.

The board approved the report. AK and VM left the meeting.

TB1 Research Q4 Report
06/07/5.7

This item was taken after agenda item 5.5.

PC presented the report which was taken as read and highlighted the
following points:
o The Trust had performed well against its peers of the same size.
e A new Head of Research had been appointed.
¢ Plan to expand research portfolio to include research boards and
widen participation of the population.

Discussion:

DBe referred to child research and noted there were few volunteers, DBe
asked if there were research opportunities in this area. PC noted the
research projects available were often niche and not suitable. PC added
larger studies were not as frequent and doctors were less inclined to take
part in large volume studies as they were qualitative rather than
quantitative.

RH asked if clinicians were being asked to focus on research projects
rather than taking care of patients. DBu noted research was not part of
the hospital’s core business but research could attract funding and
income. DBu added patients wanted to be part of trials and research
should be prioritised against our core responsibilities.

RA noted research needed to be at the core of services to improve the
health of our patients and patients nationally. RA added there were
untapped talent resources in the workforce with nurses involved in
education and research anyway.

SH noted the hospital was not a major research hospital but research
was fundamental to improving outcomes for our patients. JD noted
research was fundamental to personal development in the organisation

Page 15 of 20



Classification: Unrestricted
Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

and the Research Board was focused on finding funding to enable
specialists to undertake research.

TB1 Board Assurance Framework and Corporate Risk Register
06/07/5.8
1:01 FMc presented the report and noted the Board Assurance Framework

and Corporate Risk Register had been through all the board committees.
FMc gave a summary of the report and noted the following points:

e The Integrated Performance report had been cross referenced
with the Board Assurance Register and Corporate Risk Register
which had not identified any further risks but had been a useful
process and would continue.

o There had been a positive shift in risk profile, 5 of the strategic
risks had a reduced score, one of those moved back within
tolerance.

o There were 5 strategic risks out with tolerance, additional reports
specific to those risks were being provided to give sufficient
oversight.

o The Trust’'s external auditors had suggested we consider how we
feed into the ICS risk register, FMc added this would be included
in the next report following a discussion with IG and SH.

The impact of resourcing BAF Risk 4 - backlog on maintenance.

o The corporate risk in relation to urgent care and the impact on
planned care.

Discussion:

IG noted the Board Assurance Framework reflected the key risks of the
organisation and added the amount of detail gave good assurance and
provided a sense of the work being done and limitations in place.

DBe referred to the due date for achieving the target score and asked
what the key enablers in place were to achieve that score. FMc noted
some of the risks had been updated to include progress made but it was
harder to do this for the longer-term risks. DBe noted some of the risks
had target dates in the next few years and added this gave an
expectation of a longer journey.

LT noted there was a risk of using the Board Assurance Framework as
an action plan. SH referred to the risk appetite which helped the board
decide what it was least able to tolerate.

EJ asked if the corporate risk register was aligned from Board to ward.
FMc noted the critical risks would be raised at Executive Performance

Reviews and they would be escalated from there.

TB1 PEOPLE AND CULTURE
06/07/6
TB1 Equality and Diversity Annual Report (Deferred to Oct new reporting

06/07/6.1  schedule)
The Board noted this report has been deferred to October.

TB1 Health and Safety Annual Report 22/23
06/07/6.2

Page 16 of 20



Classification: Unrestricted
Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

MW presented the Health and Safety Report. MW took the report as read
and highlighted the following points:

e The permanent Health and Safety Manager had been in post for a
year and the Health and Safety Management system was now in
the best shape for some time.

o Aletter had been received from the Health and Safety
Commissioners regarding violence and aggression towards staff,
which required work on the causes and the support required.

o Task analysis and more structure introduced with a divisional task
calendar to draw attention to senior management their
responsibilities and requirements.

e Health and Safety now aligned with estates and working
collaboratively on the large number of highly rated risks.

Discussion:

IG noted the disappointingly large number of issues relating to violence
and aggression towards staff, IG added violence and aggression towards
staff was unfortunate but never acceptable and the board took a zero-
tolerance approach.

RA noted the shadow board had discussed incidents of violence on adult
wards being higher due to patients with dementia and cognitive issues,
RA noted there was a patrticular skill set required to deal with dementia
patients and asked how staff were supported in de-escalating violent
situations. RA added the working environment and culture needed to be
conducive to reducing violence and aggression. RA added staff turnover
was higher on adult wards with age groups 20 to 30 less likely to put up
with violence and aggression.

EJ noted the lone working policy required revision as violence often
escalated when working individually, EJ added staff aged 21 to 30 were
less experienced in dealing with challenging situations.

SH noted the Trust served an aging population and recruiting staff was
challenging, SH added there had been an increase in the number of
mental health ilinesses since the pandemic, particularly in children and
young adults. SH noted the Trust needed to make sure staff felt as
equipped as possible to respond but that demand and challenges had
changed significantly in the last 3 to 4 years.

RH noted an incident was something that happened after everything else
has failed but asked if the Trust monitored near misses, RH suggested
the Health and Safety report include near misses in future for the Board
to review. ACTION: MW/TR ¥I¥W
JD noted some of the Trust’s elderly wards faced environmental
challenges with no access to outside spaces and freedom to wander
which was important to the management of these patients.

MW referred to near misses reporting and noted this was something that
senior managers should pick up.

The board noted the report and the statutory responsibilities in relation to
health and safety.

Page 17 of 20



Classification: Unrestricted
Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

TB1 Modern Slavery Statement

06/07/6.3
MW confirmed the Modern Slavery Statement was now on the Trust’s
website as required.
The Board noted and approved the Modern Slavery Statement.

TB1 Medical Revalidation and Assurance Appraisal Annual Report
06/07/6.4 Including Statement of Compliance

PC presented the report and highlighted the following points:

o The Chief Medical Officer was required to report to the Trust
Board that they were satisfied with the amount of resource given
to doctors to revalidate and have annual appraisals. PC confirmed
he was satisfied.

o There are 233 doctors with a prescribed connection to the
responsible officer.

e 51 doctors had been recommended for revalidation during the last
financial year, 42 were recommended and 9 deferred due to
insufficient evidence.

o These results were just above the national average.

Discussion:

The Board discussed the reasons why a doctor maybe deferred.

EJ asked if there were any concerns with doctors and if so that the
appropriate action was being taken. PC referred to the report and
assured the Board that there was nobody the Board should be concerned
about.

DBu noted he had no concerns regarding the report and reflected the
Trust’s ambition should be 100% of those doctors that can be appraised
should be appraised as there were always reasons why they may be
unable to such as sickness.

MvB noted there was scope within the appraisal to look for health
problems and asked if any had been picked up in the last year.

PC provided assurance that there were no concerns regarding fitness to
practise due to health, but noted health issues that affected work were
not captured statistically.

Decision
The Board approved the annual assurance documents and approved the
sign off of the statement of compliance.

TB1 GOVERNANCE
06/07/7
TB1 Non-Executive Director Responsibilities and Committee

06/07/71  Composition
FMc noted the report looked at Non-Executive Director responsibilities
and champion roles and highlighted the following changes that would
take effect from 1st September:

¢ EJ would take over as the Senior Independent Director.
o EJ will chair the People and Culture Committee.

Page 18 of 20



Classification: Unrestricted
Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

e DBu will chair the Clinical Governance Committee.
¢ RA will chair the Remuneration Committee.

FMc noted the NHS guidance recommended Non-Exec Directors
undertake five champion roles, FMc added the recommended roles were
all covered apart from Doctors Disciplinary Advisor and Security
Management. FMc noted it was for individual organisations to agree
which roles to have, Bristol, RUH and GWH all have these roles covered,
RUH also have a Sustainability Champion and a Digital Champion.

FMc asked the Board to acknowledge the changes, agree the number of
champion roles and consider any new roles.

Discussion:

IG noted MvB would be leaving next year and recruitment planning had
started for a new NED to replace him, if there were five champions
recommended, they should all be covered but asked the Board if anyone
had any contrary views.

EJ noted she had been the Maternity Safety NED since the role was
created and felt some fresh eyes in that role may be timely, EJ added
she was happy to swap with the Doctors Discipline role as had done that
before. FMc noted the NHS review indicated champion roles could be the
responsibility of a board committee to give oversight through the
governance arrangements of the committee. The Board discussed the
champion roles in the report and agreed champion roles were valued.
The Board noted the additional work this could create and agreed the
board committees could help with the governance.

IG summarised the discussion and noted the board should try to ensure

that NED responsibility is provided throughout the committee structure.

IG added the five statutory responsibilities should be filled and then

assess how best for Non-Exec Directors to engage in particular areas

using the Improving Together approach and review on an annual basis.

IG agreed to discuss the doctor’s disciplinary role and digital role with

NED colleagues and bring back to the next meeting. ACTION IG IG

Decision:
The Board agreed the recommendations in the report.

TB1 Register of Seals
06/07/7.2
The Board noted there had been no new seals added since the last
report.
TB1 CLOSING BUSINESS
06/07/8
TB1 Any Other Business
06/07/8.1
There was no other business.
TB1 Agreement of Principle Actions and Items for Escalation
06/07/8.2

IG summarised the board's discussion.

Page 19 of 20



Classification: Unrestricted

Public Board Minutes — 6 July 2023

TB1
06/07/8.3

TB1
06/07/8.4

TB1
06/07/9
TB1
06/07/9.1

Public Questions

There were no questions from the public.
Date of Next Public Meeting

The next Public Trust Board meeting will be held on 7t September 2023,
in the Board Room, Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust
RESOLUTION

Resolution to exclude representatives of the media and members of the public

from the remainder of the meeting (due to the confidential nature of the business
to be transacted).

Page 20 of 20



Master Action Log

Deadline passed,
Update required

Progress made,
update required at
next meeting

Completed

Contact Kylie Nye, kylie.nye1@nhs.net for any issues or feedback

No progress madel/|
Deadline in future

Committee Organiser Reference Number Deadline Owner Action Current progress made sCt:::;s)I(ede) RAG Rating
Concerns around the operational response around | - May Update - SH noted that further to the
protecting Stroke Beds is clear in the report. This  |action around the Stroke narrative in the IPR,
needs to be revisited. PC noted that he would there was still further work to ensure the
support JDi as the action discussed earlier was to |message was explicit to provide the correct level
_ TB1 6/4/3.6 Integrated Performance 04/05/2023 ) improve the narrative that has been produced by |of assurance that beds are being protected for
Trust Board Public - Report (IPR) (M10)/ Stroke Lisa Thomas, LT the team. SH noted that further work is required to |Stroke patients.
Sasha Grandfield 06/07/2023 . N 5 s X N 2
TB14/5/2.5 Integrated Performance | 7155054 Peter Collins, PC better represent the improvement in an objective | - July Update - LT confirmed an assurance
Report (IPR) (M11) way. report would be going to both F&P and CGC.
- Stroke Improvement Slides reported to F&P
in July, deferred to allow enough time to
discuss. On sept F&P agenda.
Added to the development day schedule. ltem
Trust Board Public ) . . Board to discuss ways to thank and acknowledge |closed.
Sasha Grandfield TB1 06/07/1.1 Presentation of SOX 07/09/2023 Kylie Nye, KN staff at a future Board Development Day Y
PC to circulate to the Board his update paper Completed. Item closed.
Trust Board Public Sasha Grandfield TB1 06/07/2.1 Clinical Governance Peter Collins, PC giving more detail on mortality data and changes in %
Committee 27th June 2023/HMSR 07/09/2023 coding
Health and Safety report to include near misses Q1 report on September's agenda. This action
Trust Board Public ) TB1 06/07/6.2 Health and Safety Annual| 07/09/2023 Melanie Whitfield, MW data in future to be considered for Q2 report onwards.
Sasha Grandfield N
Report 22/23 Troy Ready, TR
TB1 06/07/7.1 Non-Executive Discuss the doctor's disciplinary and digital
Trust Board Public Sasha Grandfield Respons%l{l}t#‘esoz?t?ogommmee 07/09/2023 |an Green, IG champion roles with NED colleagues N 2




CLASSIFICATION: UNRESTRICTED

NHS

Salisbury

NHS Foundation Trust

Report to: Trust Board (Public) Agenda 1.8
item:

Date of Meeting: | 07 September 2023

Report Title: Chief Executive’s Report

Status: Information | Discussion Assurance Approval

X X

Approval Process (where
has this paper been reviewed
and approved)

N/A

Prepared by:

Stacey Hunter, Chief Executive Officer

Executive Sponsor
(presenting):

Stacey Hunter, Chief Executive Officer

Appendices (list if
applicable):

Appendix 1 LL communication from NHSE
Appendix 2 BSW ICB governance proposals

Recommendation:

CEOQ portfolio.

The Board is asked to receive and note this paper as progress against the local, regional,
and national agenda and as an update against the leadership responsibilities within the

Executive Summary:

The report highlights:

The purpose of the Chief Executive’s report is to highlight developments that are of
strategic and significant relevance to the Trust and which the Board of Directors needs to
be aware of. This report covers the period since the last public board meeting in July 2023

¢ Key national communications for Board awareness and information

e Operational context including impact of industrial action during the period.

¢ Relevant updates from key partnership activities including BSW Integrated Care
System and other partnerships

¢ Communication and engagement highlights

Board Assurance Framework — Strategic Priorities SEIEEES
applicable
Population: Improving the health and well-being of the population we serve

Version: 1.0

Page 1 of 7

Retention Date: 31/12/2039



CLASSIFICATION: UNRESTRICTED

Partnerships: Working through partnerships to transform and integrate our
services

People: Supporting our People to make Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust the
Best Place to work

Other (please describe) - ]

Version: 1.0 Page 2 of 7 Retention Date: 31/12/2039



CLASSIFICATION: UNRESTRICTED

1.0 Our Population
1.1 Operational Context

This report covers the period since the Board met at the beginning of July 2023 which has
continued to be impacted by medical staff industrial action, financial and performance
recovery alongside progressing our improvements efforts via our Improving Together
breakthrough objectives .

The detailed performance is shared in the Integrated Performance Report which
demonstrates sustained progress in some of the urgent care improvements and positive
progress in two out of our four breakthrough objectives ( Falls and LOS ). There are
continued pressures on the elective and cancer standards which are a combination of
capacity challenges and the impact of lost activity due to the recurrent strikes.

As Board members will be aware there has been x 4 further strikes over the last 6 weeks
with junior doctors striking continuously from 7am on the 11t °f July to 7am on the 15" °f July
and from 7am on the 13" °f August to 7am on the 18t °f August . In addition to this
Consultant Medical staff have had x 2 periods of Strike action the first from 7am on the 20t
of July to 7am on the 22" °f July and latterly from am on the 24t °f August to 7am on the 26t
of August.

Our clinical, operational and EPRR colleagues once again did a fantastic job in both
preparing for the strikes and oversight of activities during that week. As Board members will
appreciate this takes a considerable amount of time for our leadership teams. | would like to
offer my thanks and appreciation to them and to all our colleagues who stepped in to cover
during this period. Whilst we managed well colleagues found securing cover during the
August strikes much more difficult than previously . This is likely to be due to the persistent
nature of the strikes and the sense from medical colleagues that it is difficult to see an end in
sight.

The cumulative impact of the strikes is now putting the delivery of 78-weeks and 65-weeks
waiting time standard at risk which we will keep the board appraised of via the Finance and
Performance committee. It is also challenging to recover the overall activity numbers given
the recurrent nature of the medical staff dispute.

The BMA have announced further dates for consultant strikes in September and October
and the outcome of the current BMA ballot for junior doctors is expected on the 31stof
August .

1.2 Financial sustainability

Delivery against our financial plan remains a challenge with the Trust £2.4m off plan at the
end of July; costs of back fill for gaps in rosters continue to be compounded by the impact of
industrial action, the latter accounting for half the deficit against our plan. We are anticipating
significant improvements moving into the Autumn with strong a recruitment pipeline, but the
costs being incurred to support the needs of patients with complex mental health needs are
forecast to continue for the foreseeable future.

Despite the on-going challenge, the Trust has shown significant improvement in underlying
productivity in planned care, as well as length of stay reductions in emergency care,
particularly due to new same day emergency care pathways.

From a capital expenditure perspective, the Trust has submitted a business case to NHS

England for a new electronic patient record system, and progress continues to be made on
the building of a new ward.

Version: 1.0 Page 3 of 7 Retention Date: 31/12/2039



CLASSIFICATION: UNRESTRICTED

Work has commenced on the 3-5-year financial recovery plan at an organisation and
system level which will require significant focus from Board colleagues over the coming
weeks and months. There is a session on our private board agenda today in which the Chief
Finance Officer will outline the progress to date and discuss the next steps.

1.3 Bed Capacity Risk

Colleagues will recall | raised the challenge of the South Newton beds closing ( 41 beds in
total ) in respect of the impact on our bed occupancy and the numbers of people with No
Criteria to Reside . To help mitigate this risk the Wiltshire Integrated Care Alliance
developed a recovery plan which was supported by the system including an additional 0.5m
for out of hospital capacity.

There has also been a recent Emergency Care Intensive Support Team( ECIST) visit to
Wiltshire which has identified further opportunities to reduce the number of people who have
a delayed discharge from hospital.

Whilst the recovery plan and ECIST recommendations offer some mitigation | remain
concerned about our overall bed capacity.

The Chief Operating Officer may want to provide a verbal update on the position at our
Board meeting.

2.0 Our People
2.1 Staffing

The release on 30" June of the much-awaited NHS Long Term Workforce plan is welcomed.
We have started to analyse the key requirements under the three focus areas of Train (to
grow workforce numbers), Retain (improving Career development options and flexible
working opportunities), and Reform (working differently using new technology). Our analysis
will in turn inform our Strategic Workforce Plans for the next 5 years. | am encouraged that
we have recently already explored ways of supporting nurses to return to practice, improving
our numbers of degree apprenticeships for aspiring nurses and offering nurse associates
with the opportunity to use the apprenticeship route to qualify as Registered nurses. This
focus on offering routes into the nursing profession for those not attracted to traditional
university options meets the intent of the plan and supports our strategy in offering
opportunities within our local communities, with the likelihood of improved retention for these
local staff members.

A continued focus on recruiting and absence management has continued to realise modest
benefits against our staff availability target. Our average Agency spend in the last 3 months
is down just under 2% on the previous 7 months average at 5.7% of total pay, despite the
impact of industrial action and a busy operational tempo in the hospital. Our improving
together methodologies are allowing more informed use of data and better targeting of
recruitment campaigns and areas for management support. | am encouraged that our
absence rates in the last 2 months have been on target at 3%. Finally on staff availability, |
am pleased to report that following the increase to establishment numbers in the new
financial year from April, vacancies have immediately begun to fall, by way of comparison in
FY 22/23, vacancies did not start to fall until October. The efforts of those involved in
planning and delivering the recruitment activity to make this improvement are appreciated.

2.2 People Promise

People promise initiatives to have remained a focus for our OD&P team and under the
compassionate and inclusive element there has been good progress in the development of
our leadership behaviours framework, which seeks to define the behaviours expected of all
leaders in the Trust. The arrival of a new wellbeing lead has enabled us to commence
baseline our wellbeing offer through the NHS diagnostic framework, with the clear intent to
improve the offer and better inform staff of what is available. To support financial wellbeing,

Version: 1.0 Page 4 of 7 Retention Date: 31/12/2039



CLASSIFICATION: UNRESTRICTED

we have agreed a programme of staff discounts with local chamber of commerce member
organisations and commissioned a further series of financial briefings covering pension
issues.

2.3 Well Led Review

As Board colleagues will be aware we have now received our report from Aqua who we
invited to do a well led review on behalf of the Board. Colleagues will have had opportunity
to reflect on the reports’ findings and we will have an opportunity to do this collectively with
the report’s author .

The report gives a good sense of the areas where we have strengths under the well led
framework and gives us excellent insight into some areas we will want to improve. | look
forward to discussing the report in more detail with Board colleagues in the coming weeks.

3.0 Our Partnerships
3.1 National Communications

In addition to communications and assurance about the Industrial Action by doctors in this
period , the following material items have been communicated from NHS England.

3.11 New measures for Winter

To supplement the preparations for winter set out in the NHS Urgent and Emergency Care
Recovery plan this publication set out the requirements for Care traffic control centres and
acute respiratory hubs to build on the investment in additional ambulances and community
capacity ( virtual wards) . From a BSW perspective the Urgent Care Board have a
transformation programme focused on Care Co-ordination which delivers the requirements
that are set out .

There is more work to do across Wiltshire to maximum the benefits of both care co-
ordination and virtual wards which our clinical and operational teams are supporting.

3.12 New Standards for NHS board members

The NHS published a new framework to help senior board member strengthen board
governance and leadership which includes a revised Fit and Proper Person Test ( FPPT) .
NHS England have done this in response to the one of the five recommendations from the
Kark review and will introduce:

¢ A new standard reference for people leaving NHS Board roles will be held on file until
the person turns 75 . This will include details on any ongoing or discontinued
complaints and disciplinary issues.

e Data fields on the Electronic Staff Record to record Board members FPPT.

¢ An extension of FPPT to all commissioners and arm’s length bodies, Care Quality
Commission and NHS England

| know this is something our Chair will review and ensure we are able to respond too.

3.13 Lucy Letby conviction

| know the conviction for murdering seven babies and attempting to kill another six has sent
understandable shock waves through the NHS and the communities we serve. It is difficult

to reflect on the impact of these hideous crimes and unimaginable for the parents and
families of her victims.

Version: 1.0 Page 5 of 7 Retention Date: 31/12/2039



CLASSIFICATION: UNRESTRICTED

As Board colleagues will know the government have ordered an independent inquiry into the
wider circumstances surrounding the deaths including how concerns that were raised were
dealt with,

| attach a letter we received from NHS England for Board members information (see
appendix 1).

3.2 BSW Integrated Care System

The focus for the ICB on oversight and delivery of the BSW financial recovery plan for 23/24
continues with ongoing pressures in delivery of the plan . | will ask the CFO to detail in our
private session.

The ICB have developed updated governance proposals which | share in detail at appendix
2.

3.3 Wiltshire Integrated Care Alliance ( ICA)

The Integrated Care Alliance did not meet in August 2023 as planned; however, work has
continued at pace across several areas in recent months, principally around:
e Urgent Care & Flow

¢ Mental Health

¢ No Criteria to Reside Recovery

e Health Inequalities

e Delivering the Community Investment Fund
¢ Neighbourhood Collaboratives

On mental health a system workshop was held and some key themes fell out of that for
Wiltshire as a ‘Place,’ these reflected the challenges on prescribing, timelines of diagnosis,
where to seek support, and the challenge of flow through acute mental health services. A
mental health strategy draft is due by the end of the calendar year.

Health inequalities work proceeds on several fronts with the ICB devolving £860,000 to
Wiltshire. Joint Strategic Needs Assessment data and the CORE20PLUS5 approach is
directing this work. We have resourced this work clinically and strategically.

The NHS South West Community Investment Fund sought to support, develop, and invest
in programmes of work that would be effective in local communities. £100,000 was allocated
for investment in Wiltshire. This was invested into Wiltshire’s local voluntary sector through
expansion of existing programmes: Surviving Winter, Cost of Living Response Programme,
and Community Grant Cost of Living Uplift Grants.

The ‘Neighbourhood Collaboratives’ programme of community led initiatives is also
ramping up and exploring a programme of work in the South of Wiltshire, following
successes in the North.

3.4 Other partnerships, communications, and engagements

3.4.1 Staff Thank You Week

The Thank You Week includes the annual awards, Long Service Awards, Volunteers lunch,
Family Fun and Sports Day and staff and friends live music night. All being held in The
Close between Thursday 7t and Saturday 9" September. The events are generously
supported by the Stars Appeal and the League of Friends.

Version: 1.0 Page 6 of 7 Retention Date: 31/12/2039



CLASSIFICATION: UNRESTRICTED

The Awards received over four hundred nominations and seats are fully booked for the night
with a waiting list of over one hundred. The music night has two hundred prebooked and the
Family Fun Day over 400 - 100 volunteers are booked to attend the lunch.

3.4.2 SFT Podcasts The Cake

The new series now has three episodes live and they have already been downloaded 150
times. A recording in front of a live audience took place during the inaugural Tent Talks —
this episode had two external speakers plus our Chair lan Green the Trust Chair discussing
the challenge of delivering inclusive public services during a time of division and debate.

The first Cake series is a finalist for the HSJ communications award and the CommsHero
award for equality and diversity.

3.4.4 Anniversary activity

The hospital held its first in a generation Open Day on 22" July. The event was supported
by departments and teams across the hospital plus colleagues from emergency services,
partner organisations and charities. While it rained a lot the event had approx. seven
hundred attendees and lots of smiles. Highlights can be seen here
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=LRGm42zu2cw&t=6s

Tent Talks took place over two days, 24th and 25th July, in the Seacole and Nightingale
tents on The Green - these had been used for the Open Day — the event was generously
supported by the Stars Appeal. There were thirty-two separate learning, development, and
wellbeing events for staff over 2 days and 750 pre-bookings. These included sessions on
inclusion, leadership under pressure and civility plus aromatherapy and sleep workshops
and a comedy night to which staff were able to invite friends and partners. Highlights can be
viewed here https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=t3pDQj 8pRc&t=4s

| know the Board will want to join me in thanking everyone who worked alongside our
communications team in delivering these wonderful events. By the time we meet for our next
Board meeting we will be only hours away from our staff awards event which are a brilliant
chance to reflect on the contributions our colleagues make to our local communities .

Version: 1.0 Page 7 of 7 Retention Date: 31/12/2039


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=LRGm42zu2cw&t=6s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=t3pDQj_8pRc&t=4s

Classification: Official

To: e Allintegrated care boards and NHS
trusts:

chairs

chief executives

chief operating officers
medical directors

chief nurses

heads of primary care
directors of medical education

e Primary care networks:

clinical directors

cCc. o NHS England regions:

directors

chief nurses

medical directors

directors of primary care and
community services
directors of commissioning
workforce leads
postgraduate deans

heads of school

regional workforce, training and
education directors / regional
heads of nursing

Dear Colleagues,

Verdict in the trial of Lucy Letby

NHS

England

NHS England
Wellington House
133-155 Waterloo Road
London

SE1 8UG

18 August 2023

We are writing to you today following the outcome of the trial of Lucy Letby.

Lucy Letby committed appalling crimes that were a terrible betrayal of the trust placed in her,
and our thoughts are with all the families affected, who have suffered pain and anguish that few
of us can imagine.

Colleagues across the health service have been shocked and sickened by her actions, which
are beyond belief for staff working so hard across the NHS to save lives and care for patients
and their families.

Publication reference: PRN00719



On behalf of the whole NHS, we welcome the independent inquiry announced by the
Department of Health and Social Care into the events at the Countess of Chester and will co-
operate fully and transparently to help ensure we learn every possible lesson from this awful
case.

NHS England is committed to doing everything possible to prevent anything like this happening
again, and we are already taking decisive steps towards strengthening patient safety
monitoring.

The national roll-out of medical examiners since 2021 has created additional safeguards by
ensuring independent scrutiny of all deaths not investigated by a coroner and improving data
quality, making it easier to spot potential problems.

This autumn, the new Patient Safety Incident Response Framework will be implemented across
the NHS — representing a significant shift in the way we respond to patient safety incidents, with
a sharper focus on data and understanding how incidents happen, engaging with families, and
taking effective steps to improve and deliver safer care for patients.

We also wanted to take this opportunity to remind you of the importance of NHS leaders
listening to the concerns of patients, families and staff, and following whistleblowing procedures,
alongside good governance, particularly at trust level.

We want everyone working in the health service to feel safe to speak up — and confident that it
will be followed by a prompt response.

Last year we rolled out a strengthened Freedom to Speak Up (FTSU) policy. All organisations
providing NHS services are expected to adopt the updated national policy by January 2024 at
the latest.

That alone is not enough. Good governance is essential. NHS leaders and Boards must ensure
proper implementation and oversight. Specifically, they must urgently ensure:

1. All staff have easy access to information on how to speak up.

2. Relevant departments, such as Human Resources, and Freedom to Speak Up
Guardians are aware of the national Speaking Up Support Scheme and actively refer
individuals to the scheme.

3. Approaches or mechanisms are put in place to support those members of staff who may
have cultural barriers to speaking up or who are in lower paid roles and may be less
confident to do so, and also those who work unsociable hours and may not always be
aware of or have access to the policy or processes supporting speaking up. Methods for

Copyright © NHS England 2023 2


https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/the-guide-for-the-nhs-on-freedom-to-speak-up/

communicating with staff to build healthy and supporting cultures where everyone feels
safe to speak up should also be put in place.

4. Boards seek assurance that staff can speak up with confidence and whistleblowers are
treated well.

5. Boards are regularly reporting, reviewing and acting upon available data.

While the CQC is primarily responsible for assuring speaking up arrangements, we have also
asked integrated care boards to consider how all NHS organisations have accessible and
effective speaking up arrangements.

All NHS organisations are reminded of their obligations under the Fit and Proper Person
requirements not to appoint any individual as a Board director unless they fully satisfy all FPP
requirements — including that they have not been responsible for, been privy to, contributed to,
or facilitated any serious misconduct or mismanagement (whether lawful or not). The CQC can
take action against any organisation that fails to meet these obligations.

NHS England has recently strengthened the Fit and Proper Person Framework by bringing in
additional background checks, including a board member reference template, which also
applies to board members taking on a non-board role.

This assessment will be refreshed annually and, for the first time, recorded on Electronic Staff
Record so that it is transferable to other NHS organisations as part of their recruitment
processes.

Lucy Letby’s appalling crimes have shocked not just the NHS, but the nation. We know that you
will share our commitment to doing everything we can to prevent anything like this happening
again. The actions set out in this letter, along with our full co-operation with the independent
inquiry to ensure every possible lesson is learned, will help us all make the NHS a safer place.

Yours sincerely,

./ : /j{ 4
%}tﬁ Pt \ IR TAVR (NS
Amanda Pritchard Sir David Sloman Dame Ruth May Professor Sir
NHS Chief Executive  Chief Operating Chief Nursing Officer, Stephen Powis
Officer England National Medical
NHS England Director
NHS England

Copyright © NHS England 2023 3


https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/nhs-england-fit-and-proper-person-test-framework-for-board-members/

Approach to delivery governance

Aug-23

:“ﬁ&ﬁﬁm



Context

The NHS Operating Framework assigns the system specific responsibilities in terms of delivery and
oversight. As part of this, the ICB needs to have arrangements in place to take assurance over our system
commitments, and wants to enact this according to our agreed principles of subsidiarity and mutual
accountability.

In order to ensure we are on track with delivery of our key system commitments, we need to have a way
of understanding how well we are progressing across five key planning areas:

Operating plan delivery

System oversight commitments (closely related to operating plan delivery for 23/24)

Implementation plan delivery

Financial Recovery

Delivery of inequalities and outcomes commitments

We have a number of workstreams and programmes underway, and have discussed with SROs how best
to bring these together and achieve greater consistency. This slide deck proposes a way forward for
discussion focussing on two areas: delivery of our planning commitments and oversight of NHS
organsiations.



Principles

* We want to continue working in a way that respects our agreed commitments to mutual accountability
and collective oversight

* We need to establish mechanisms that operate effectively across system partners, and are based on a
high trust, high transparency approach.

* We need clear delivery governance and decision-making routes that are easy to understand and
collectively owned, are effective at ensuring that we have the right groups set up to carry out delivery,
and that delivery is on track.

« By delivery, we mean putting in place the actions to deliver our agreed strategy, and our implementation
plan and operating plan

* We need to recognise the interdependencies and the differences between oversight of ‘business as
usual’ activities and transformation work and ensure the mechanisms we put in place are capable of
overseeing both.

* We need to be clear that the ICB risk management framework applies to delivery groups

* There is a desire to have a consistent programme and project methodology using initiation, gateways,
milestones, evaluation, closedown etc

« We want to be clear on what decision-making powers / authorisations sit at different forums

« System partners will, as business as usual ensure that their own organisations are delivering against
their plans. However, there is benefit in partners carrying out oversight together, in the understanding
that under current legislation, performance / delivery oversight cannot be delegated from / by sovereign
organisations.

* To ensure efficient and effective ways of working, we should not set up new forums if another group



Proposed approach

We propose to put in place a governance structure that allows for subsidiarity and also for collective
oversight of delivery.

The structure would:

« Enable delivery groups/programmes to have day to day responsibility for implementing our plans, first
line response to resolve issues and delays to delivery

* Have consistent terms of reference so that all delivery groups are clear on what is in their remit and
authority

« Have a clear escalation framework to ensure issues can be escalated to the appropriate forum

« Establish a planning and delivery oversight forum with representatives from system partners (directors
of performance, transformation directors, other nominated reps) to:

A) twice a quarter, review progress against delivery of our transformation priorities as set out in our
implementation plan

B) on a quarterly basis undertake a collective review of our performance against the NHS oversight
framework metrics

» Be clear on the relationship of the delivery and oversight forum with the individual delivery groups, to
the financial recovery board, BSW ICB assurance committees, BSW ICB Executive Group, and BSW
ICB Board and other relevant forums within organisations

» Be responsible for producing summary highlight and assurance reports to provider and ICB boards as
required

» Be respectful to partners’ time — utilising different approaches for NHS oversight framework/operating
plan vs implementation plan



Delivery of our collective
plans




Definition of delivery groups

* In this context, delivery groups refers to any group of partner organisations that come together to deliver our operating
plan and implementation plan commitments.

* These groups may be existing forums that have other key responsibilities in our system governance e.g. ICAs, but they
are also responsible for delivering our plans.

* The main delivery groups as currently identified are listed below — however, we may need to establish other delivery
groups as we evolve our implementation plan.

* Approach also allows all parties to be clear on scale of issue and which group is responsible for resolving at any point in
time

Clinical transformation Enabling delivery groups Other forums charged with
delivery groups delivery

Urgent Care & Flow Digital B&NES ICA
Elective Estates Swindon ICA
Mental Health Finance Wiltshire ICA
LD&A Green AHA

CYP Workforce

LMNS

Primary and Community Care



Subsidiarity and authority of
delivery groups

* Purpose is to enact principle of subsidiary — working assumption that issues are resolved at earliest possible opportunity by those
closest to the issue. Each Delivery Group is empowered to take decisions to enable delivery of agreed transformation commitments
as set out in the implementation plan and delivery of operating plan commitments. These are shared priorities that all partners have
committed to deliver.

* The aim is to have a clear, shared mandate for each delivery group so there is clarity on between system partners on the purpose
for each delivery group and what they are aiming to deliver. Delivery groups are formally established by the ICB, to ensure
consistency of approach, clarity of applicable governance framework, and the ICB’s ability to discharge its responsibilities as
system convenor and delivery of system plans.

* |ssues can only be escalated where opportunities to resolve at an earlier point through Delivery Groups have been fully explored.
Issues will be escalated by the Delivery Group Director.

* The Planning and Delivery Oversight Group will formally report into the ICS Executive by exception on a monthly basis with regards
to plan delivery.

BSW Financial
Recovery Group

—> Planning and
Delivery ICS Executive* ICB Board / ICP
Oversight Group

Statutory
organisations

smmmd Delivery Group*

Organisation T Population Health gulﬁngs
Board *Escalation route from Board :
Delivery Group depends on Committee

nature of issue

*In time, the Planning and
Delivery Group could report
into a more formal meeting of
the ICS Executive



Escalation levels

« Aim is to agree an approach allows all parties to be clear on scale of issue and which group is
responsible for resolving at any point in time.

* Where any issue has an impact on the overall provider segmentation under the NHS oversight
framework, the BSW oversight framework would also apply (see later in document), but would be
carried out in a complementary way

Business as usual Statutory organisations responsible for co-ordinating activities, monitoring and identifying risks /
issues for escalation to the relevant delivery group

Advise Responsible delivery group discussing emerging issue, oversees production and assurance of
recovery plan, co-ordinates any support required from other system partners, monitors /
assesses effectiveness of support actions, notifies oversight forum via the respective delivery
group director

Assure Delivery and oversight forum reviews issue, provides briefing to ICB Executive/ ICB Board /
NHSE as required, agrees any additional support required

Alert ICS may ask for external support, and undertakes any further actions agreed. In this level of
escalation, regulatory action may apply if this relates to an NHS oversight related commitment
or quality issue.



Delivery Group roles

* As discussed at the SRO meeting, there was clear feedback during the programme review that clarity
on roles would be helpful, with more consistency across programmes / delivery groups.

Scope of role

Delivery The Delivery Group Director is the senior (director-level or equivalent) individual responsible for ensuring
Group that a programme meets its objectives, delivers the projected outcomes and realises the required benefits.
Director and is the overall owner of the change. directs the programme of work. They provide the interface between

programme ownership and delivery. They are responsible for planning and designing the programme and
proactively monitoring progress, resolving issues and/or taking the decision to escalate issues.

Delivery The Delivery Group Sponsor is the Executive or equivalent responsible for championing the programme of
Group work and supporting the Director to carry out his/her role in ensuring the programme is delivering.
Sponsor

* In this set-up, the delivery group sponsors could rotate on an annual basis in order to ensure varied
engagement across our major programmes of work. We can also open up sponsorship to our wider ICS
executive partners.



Additional considerations

* We will reflect on the operation of this governance at the end of this financial year to ensure it is fit for
purpose

* We will consider and incorporate findings from well-led reviews as they conclude

* The planning and delivery forum will also act as the parent group for the ICB/ICS planning meetings
and take overall responsibility for delivery of the key NHS planning submissions



NHS oversight framework



NHS oversight framework (NHS OF)

* The ICB has a responsibility to provide first line oversight of NHS providers — this was delegated to ICBs in the NHS
operating framework published in November.

* The Planning and Delivery Oversight Group will enable this responsibility to be carried out in our established working
principles of mutual accountability and subsidiarity.

* Once a quarter, the NHS partners on the group will meet to review organisation’s self-assessment against the NHS OF,
and propose a segmentation to NHSE. The segmentation proposals will be shared with the ICS Executive along with any
issues or points of escalation. The NHS OF metrics are shown in Appendix 1.

* We are also developing a BSW oversight framework (more overleaf) so that we are clear on what happens if any
organisation moves into a segmentation 3 or 4 and/or any particular points of concern result in the need for escalation.

ICS Executive

Planning and

Delivery
Oversight Group
Input and triangulation
Organisations AWP self- RUH self- sought from those delivery
complete self- assessment assessment Delivery Groups* groups undertaking work

assessment GWH self-

assessment

relevant to the NHS oversight
SFT self- framework — each of the SOF
assessment metrics will be mapped to a

ICB self- delivery group

assessment




NHS oversight framework

* NHS oversight framework sets out the role and responsibilities of NHSE, ICBs and providers in relation to performance

oversight.

* Extract below sets out the different segments and the metrics are shown in the appendix, — we are required to carry out a
segmentation analysis against the metrics on a quarterly basis.

» Currently, we are carrying out our local responsibilities in a less formal way — but we know that in light of the NHS

operating model and changes to ways of working, that we need to move to a more standardised arrangement and codify

some of the processes we have established, as well as streamlining other arrangements e.g. CRMs.

Extract from NHS Oversight Framework

w Segment description Scale and nature of support needs

Consistently high performing across the five national
oversight themes and playing an active leadership role in
supporting and driving key local place based and overall
ICB priorities

Plans that have the support of system partners in place to
address areas of challenge Targeted support may be
required to address specific identified issues

Significant support needs against one or more of the five
national oversight themes and in actual or suspected
breach of the NHS provider licence (or equivalent for NHS
trusts)

In actual or suspected breach of the NHS provider licence
(or equivalent for NHS trusts) with very serious, complex
issues manifesting as critical quality and/or finance
concerns that require intensive support

No specific support needs identified. Trusts encouraged to
offer peer support Systems are empowered to direct
improvement resources to support places and organisations,
or invited to partner in the co-design of support packages for
more challenged organisations

Flexible support delivered through peer support, clinical
networks, the NHS England universal support offer (e.g.
GIRFT, Right Care, pathway redesign, NHS Retention
Programme) or a bespoke support package via one of the
regional improvement hubs

Bespoke mandated support, potentially through a regional
improvement hub, drawing on system and national expertise
as required

Mandated intensive support delivered through the Recovery
Support Programme



BSW oversight framework

Aim is to agree and document a local approach to implementation of the NHS oversight framework so that we all
understand the principles and mechanisms for overseeing and resolving performance challenges in relation to the
domains covered in the NHS oversight framework: quality of care, access and outcomes; preventing ill-health and
reducing inequalities, people, use of resources and leadership and capability.

Principle of mutual accountability and subsidiary will still apply, with the aim of having proportionate oversight allowing for
assurance and improvement to take place.

The full oversight framework will be co-produced by the Planning and delivery oversight group.

The below table sets out the likely role of different forums within our oversight framework taking into account our delivery
group model and principles of mutual accountability.

Statutory organisations ¢  Carrying out self-assessment against oversight metrics on a quarterly basis
»  Putting in place recovery actions to address any segment 3/4 flags

Relevant delivery * Inputting into overall segmentation on a quarterly basis
groups *  Monitoring and overseeing recovery actions

Planning and delivery Collectively review self-assessments, agree overall segmentation proposals to NHSE on a quarterly
oversight group basis
Triangulate inputs from delivery groups
Agree enhanced support arrangements and commission recovery plans where individual metrics or
segments flag for segment 3 e.g. enhanced oversight arrangements
Take an overall view of impact of recovery actions and recommend any proposals for overall segment
changes to ICS executive

ICS Executive Receive exception reports
Agree proposals where an organisation is recommended to move segment
Enhanced oversight May be set up in response to a segment 3 flag or another regulatory issue.
arrangements Will be agreed either by Planning and delivery oversight group or ICS Executive depending on nature

and scale of issue e.g. Quality Improvement Group, Finance Oversight Group. Arrangements will be for
an interim period whilst issues are resolved.



Worked example



Worked example

Overall approach Escalation / SOF status

Diagnostic performance meeting
operating plan targets and
performing well, albeit with some
variation in individual modalities
month on month.

=

BAU performance monitoring via individual trust
processes and Elective Care Delivery Group

BAU escalation level.
No change to SOF rating

—

Modality lead / Trust lead develops recovery plan

ICB formally notifies NHSE

Issue identified regarding 2. Trust Board and Elective Care Delivery Group .
) . Assure escalation level.
operational performance, recovery oversees delivery of recovery plan oo
: I SOF rating likely unchanged
plan put in place. » 3. Support mobilised from other partners as thouah mav have fl d for
Trust and Elective Care Delivery appropriate. alihoug Saymanf?, agged o
Group agree to escalate 4. Oversight group made aware of issues and egment 5.
actions.
Material under-delivery of 1. Delivery Group Director escalates to Oversight
diagnostic performance, recovery Group Advise escalation level.
plan not resulting in desired actions. 2. Further mitigating actions and any further support SOF flag may result in 3 rating
Trust, Elective Care Delivery Group - identified. for diagnostics and enhanced
and Oversight Group agree to 3. Issue reported via ICB governance to ICS Exec provider oversight processes.
escalate and ICB Board.
Delays to treatment resulting in . .
patient harm and/or significant 1. Ongoing escalation and exception reporting. Alert escalation level. SOF I|'kely
. . o to be 3 or 4. Enhanced provider
breach of operating plan 2. NHSE made formally aware of issues, and invited .
. . . . . . oversight processes. NHSE may
commitments regarding operating to join enhanced oversight as appropriate. tak tion hanae to tierin
performance. 3. Specific briefing made to ICB Board. axe action €.9. change fo tiefing

status and support offered.




Appendix 1 — NHS Oversight
Framework Metrics




Quality of Care, Access & Outcomes
sub-categories: Elective

s T o . BSW ICB
. . £ 3 5 = Great Western Royal United " BSW sub ICB
NHS OF Metric Name Full Period % s ® . . Salisbury FT ICB or provider .
5 G ® > Hospital Hospital -population
=& = aggregate
S007a: Total elective activity undertaken 202301 104% 97.5% 105.8% 86.6% . 98.5% I
compared with 2019/20 baseline 101/137 38/137 129/137 21/42
. L Ranking by quartile
S007b: Elective Activity : Completed pathway 202303 110% 107.3% 116.3% H 92% | 111.7% H
elective activity growth 46/137 30/137 100/137 11/42 n highest quartile
interquartile range
S009a: Total patients waiting more than 52 weeks (2023 04 356,212 2,238 1,695 918 I 4,851 H 4,680 H -
to start consultant led treatment 82/136 71/136 45/136 9/42 9/42 [ lowest quartile
5009b: Total patients waiting more than 78 weeks [2023 04 10,973 1 H 8 Y H 9 H 35 H
to start consultant led treatment 30/136 60/136 1/137 4/42 4/42
5009c: Total patients waiting more than 104 weeks|2023 04 0 441 Y H 0 H 0 H 0 H 3 |
to start consultant led treatment 1/136 1/136 1/136 1/42 17/42
S013a: Diagnostic activity levels: Imaging 202303 120% 22/42 97.1% ' 102.7% 117% H 104.6% I 104.8% [
108/135 81/135 30/135 22/42 22/42
5013b: Diagnostic activity levels: Physiological 202303 120% | 103.8% 110.8% 111.2% 199.8% H 122.2% H 122.7% I
measurement
51/136 50/136 8/136 9/42 12/42
S013c: Diagnostic activity levels: Endoscopy 202303 120% 94% 96.8% 167.3% H 22.5% ' 95.4% I 91.5% I
60/136 10/136 122/136 21/42 23/42
S013d: Diagnostic activity levels: Total 202303 120% | 104.7% 98.30% 106.4% 114.1% H 105.6% I 105.5% |
100/136 55/136 29/136 14/42 19/42




Quality of Care, Access & Outcomes
sub-categories: Cancer and Outpatients

Quality of Care, Access & Outcomes
sub-categories: Urgent and Emergency Care

s T T o ) BSW ICB
. . Y S § 3 Great Western Royal United ) i
NHS OF Metric Name Full Period w e = ® . . Salisbury FT ICB or provider
5 8 " > Hospital Hospital
- o z aggregate
$123a: Adult general and acute type 1 bed
8 R 2023 05 94.8% 98.4% 96.9% I 98.2% 97.8%
occupancy (adjusted for void beds)
109/123 88/123 105/123 39/42
S124a: Percentage of beds occupied by patients
o . 2023 05 14.2% 16.7% | 21.6% 26.2% 21.3%
who no longer meet the criteria to reside
82/133 117/133 130/133 41/42




Quality of Care, Access & Outcomes
sub-category: Safe, high-quality care

Ranking by quartile

highest quartile
- interquartile range
(B lowest quartile




Quality of Care, Access & Outcomes
sub-categories: Personalised Care

There are no updates on the SOF this month for these metrics

Quality of Care, Access & Outcomes
sub-categories: Maternity and Children’s Health

Ranking by quartile

highest quartile
- interquartile range
(B lowest quartile




Quality of Care, Access & Outcomes

sub-categories: Primary and Community Care

Exec Lead : Fiona Slevin-Brown
Richard Smale

SE | E o BSW ICB
K] 53 Great Western Royal United . BSW sub ICB
NHS OF Metric Name Full Period W e B ® . . Salisbury FT ICB or provider .
5 8 > Hospital Hospital -population
L} z aggregate
5127.79
S001a: Number of general practice appointments 2023 03 or 5445.03 per '
per 10,000 weighted patients P 10,000
10,000
20/42
$105a: Proportion of patients discharged from
a: Froportion ot p narg 2023 03 92.5% 88% 90.4% 95.1% 89.8%
hospital to their usual place of residence
129/136 104/136 26/136 91/106
S106a: Available virtual ward capacity per 100k 2023 04 12.6 per |
head of population 40per | 17per 100,000
100,000 | 100,000
28/42
: f 2- i
$107a: Percentage of 2-hour Urgent Corﬁmunnty 2023 03 70% 82.2% 66.1% L
Response referrals where care was provided
within two hours 40/42
$108a: Number of Completed Referrals to 2023 02 86.3 per 303.6 per H
Community Pharmacist Consultation Service 100,000 100,000
(CPCS) from a general practice 3/42
$108b: Number of Completed Referrals to 87.5 per 70.3 per
Community Pharmacist Consultation Service 2023 02 100,000 100,000 !
(CPCS) from NHS111 per 100,000 population 30/42
$109a: Units of Dental Activity delivered as a
2023 05 100% 76.8% 67.5%

proportion of all Units of Dental Activity
contracted

33/42

Ranking by quartile

n highest quartile
- interquartile range

UPDATED L

BSW ICB has
moved to the interquartile in this period

lowest quartile

UPDATED
BSW ICB has improved to the interquartile
in this period

UPDATED

UPDATED



Quality of Care, Access & Outcomes
sub-categories: MH and LD

Learning
disabilities and
autism

Mental health
services

Ranking by quartile

n highest quartile
- interquartile range

(B lowest quartile

g - E v AWP BSW ICB
NHS OF Metric Name Full Period 0 g g - ( benchmarked with ICB or provider
= g 5 > MH providers ) aggregate
S029a: Inpatients with a learning disability and/or 93,9304 42 per |
autism per million head of population -23Q 30per | 42per 1,000,000
1,000,000|1,000,000
24/42
S030a: Proportion of people aged 14 and over with
a learning disability on the GP register receiving an 22-2303 100% 78.1% 71%
annual health check
38/42
S081a: Access rate for IAPT services 202303 100% 43.7%
39/42
S084a: Number of children and young people 202303 100% 59.6%
accessing mental health services as a % of
population 41/42
S085a: People with severe mental illness receiving [5023 o3 100% 91.3% 82.7% |
a full annual physical health check and follow-up
interventions as a % of LTP indicative trajectory 29/42
S086a: Inappropriate adult acute mental health Jan 2023 - Mar 0 305 | 10 H
2023
placement out of area placement bed days
21/56 2/42
S110a: Access rates to community mental health 202303 100% 506.8% H
services for adult and older adults with severe
mental illness 2/42
$125a: Adult Acute LoS Over 60 Days % of total 202302 22.5% 26.8% |
disch MH
ischarges (MH) 33/52
$125b: Older Adult Acute LoS Over 90 Days % of  |2023 03 37.3% 51.9%
total disch MH
otal discharges (MH) 46/54




Preventing lll Health and Reducing Inequalities
sub-categories: Screening, Vaccs and Imms

Ranking by quartile

highest quartile
- interquartile range
(B lowest quartile




Preventing lll Health and Reducing Inequalities
sub-categories: Prevention and Long-Term Conditions

Ranking by quartile

highest quartile
- interquartile range
(B lowest quartile




Finance and Use of Resources

sub-categories: Finance

Ranking by quartile

n highest quartile

=T =
o= | ® BSW ICB
= (© c 9 i ; )
NHS OF Metric Name Full period | 2| S 32 Great Western Royal United Salisbury FT ICB or provider - interquartile range
fogi ® S Hospital Hospital
ﬂ & 2 aggregate (W |owest quartile
S027a: Achievement of Mental Health 5023 03 Yes by £133k
Investment
S118a: Financial stability - variance from break- 9023 03 £1K £10k £39k £18k
even (Em YTD)
Sl:ILQIa: Financial efficiency - variance from 5023 03 £23m £om £5m £8.9m
efficiency ( £m YTD)
. HH 0
S120a: Agency Spend vs agency ceiling (% over 2022 02 202% 73% 73%
plan YTD)
S120b: Agency spend price cap compliance 2022 02 No No No




Leadership

sub-categories: Leadership

Ranking by quartile

highest quartile
- interquartile range
(B lowest quartile




People
sub-categories: belonging in the NHS, growing for the future

Ranking by quartile

highest quartile
- interquartile range
(B lowest quartile




People
sub-categories: looking after our people

Ranking by quartile

highest quartile
- interquartile range
(B lowest quartile




